BOB GOODLATTE, Virginia
CHAIRMAN

F. JAMES SENSENBRENNER, JR., Wisconsin
LAMAR S, SMITH, Texas
STEVE CHABOT, Ohio
DARRELL E. ISSA, California
STEVE KING, lowa

LOUIE GOHMERT, Texas

JIM JORDAN, Ohio

TED POE, Texas

TOM MARINO, Pennsylvania
THEY GOWDY, South Carolina
RAUL R. LABRADOR, Idaho
DOUG COLLINS, Georgia
RON DESANTIS, Florida

KEN BUCK, Colorado

JOHN RATCLIFFE, Texas
MARTHA ROBY, Alabama
MATT GAETZ, Florida

MIKE JOHNSON, Louisiana
ANDY BIGGS, Arizona

JOHN RUTHERFORD, Florida
KAREN HANDEL, Georgia
KEITH J. ROTHFUS, Pennsylvania

ONE HUNDRED FIFTEENTH CONGRESS

Congress of the Wnited Dtates
Rouse of Representatioes

COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY
2138 RAYBURN Houske OFFICE BUILDING
WasHINGTON, DC 20515-6216
(202) 225-3951

http://www.house.gov/judiciary

May 24, 2018

President Donald J. Trump

The White House

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20500

Dear Mr. President,

JERROLD NADLER, New York
RANKING MEMBER

ZOE LOFGREN, California
SHEILA JACKSON LEE, Texas
STEVE COHEN, Tennessee
HENRY C. “HANK" JOHNSON, JR., Georgia
TED DEUTCH, Florida

LUIS V. GUTIERREZ, Illinois
KAREN BASS, California

CEDRIC L. RICHMOND, Louisiana
HAKEEM S. JEFFRIES, New York
DAVID CICILLINE, Rhode Island
ERIC SWALWELL, California

TED LIEU, California

JAMIE RASKIN, Maryland
PRAMILA JAYAPAL, Washington
BRAD SCHNEIDER, lllinois

VAL DEMINGS, Florida

Although we disagree with you on a full range of matters, we all agree that it would be
best for Special Counsel Robert Mueller’s investigation to reach its conclusion as soon as
possible. To that end, we write to advise you: stop stalling, stop blaming the investigation for
your political troubles, and submit to an interview.

The need for your cooperation is more acute than ever. In the past few days alone, you
have worked to advance a conspiracy theory about the FBI “infiltrating” your campaign, ordered
the Department of Justice to open a criminal investigation that is not properly predicated by the
available evidence, and—inexcusably—helped to expose a confidential source whose safety
depends on your discretion.! Your new lawyer, Rudy Giuliani, suggests that this entire effort

was to give you some sort of strategic advantage in your negotiations with the Special Counsel.?
Too many of these reckless actions appear to be motivated by your desire to bring the Special
Counsel’s investigation to an end.

And that desire is perfectly clear. Indeed, you hardly talk about anything else on social
media these days. You argue that “[t]he Mueller probe should never have been started.” You
insist that “[t]here was no Collusion (it is a Hoax) and there is no Obstruction of Justice (that is a
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setup & trap).”* You ask, “[i]s this Phony Witch Hunt going to go on even longer so it

wrongfully impacts the Mid-Term Elections?> You have long hoped that loyalists in the
Department of Justice would help you “lift the cloud” of the investigation by bringing it to an
end.® Mr. Giuliani believes that “it is about time for them to end the investigation.” Vice
President Pence says that “it’s time to wrap it up.”®

Provided he is free to follow the facts where they lead, the Special Counsel should
complete his work as quickly as he can. We are eager to read about his findings. But for all of
your complaints about the length and reach of this investigation, you and your legal team
continue to dance around the question of an interview with Mr. Mueller—a necessary
precondition for completion of the investigation.

It was not always this way. Last year, you were “100 percent” eager to sit down with the
Special Counsel.’ In January, you were “looking forward to it, actually.”'® In recent months,
however, your tone has changed. You would “love to speak” with the Special Counsel, but first
you “have to find that we’re going to be treated fairly because everybody sees it now and it’s a
pure witch hunt.”!! Your legal team has additional conditions. They may allow you to sit for an
interview, but only on their terms: “max, two to three hours around a narrow set of questions,”
and provided that they receive the questions in advance.'? It seems highly unlikely that any
experienced prosecutor would agree to these stipulations. It also seems unlikely that dragging
out negotiations about an interview will prevent the Special Counsel from obtaining one.

Although no President has ever required the Department of Justice to litigate the issue,
the Special Counsel can issue a subpoena for your testimony. That subpoena would compel you
to testify before a grand jury, under oath, without your legal team present. It would not be the
first time that a sitting president has been forced to comply with legal process. After the
Supreme Court denied his claim of executive privilege, President Nixon was compelled to turn
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over the Watergate tapes.!* President Clinton agreed to be deposed in the Paula Jones case after
the Supreme Court concluded that a sitting president is not immune from civil process.'*

You may choose to resist this subpoena, but the consensus legal view appears to be that
you would lose that case in court.'> The Supreme Court was crystal clear: the privileges of your
office are overcome by “the fundamental demands of due process of law in the fair
administration of criminal justice.”'® Even if you were to win the case, litigation takes time. By
forcing the Department of Justice to take this step, you will extend the life of the investigation—
the “witch hunt,” as you call it—by months if not years.

We should avoid all of this unpleasantness and get on with the work of the American
people, who deserve to know the facts at the conclusion of this investigation. Rather than casting
wild and unfounded accusations against your own Department of Justice—rather than seeking to
expose a confidential informant at great risk to his or her safety and to national security—we
urge you to let the Départment do its work while you do yours. You insist that you “would love
to speak” with the Special Counsel “because we’ve done nothing wrong.”!” We ask that you
make that case directly to the Special Counsel—voluntarily—so that Mr. Mueller can complete
his work and issue his final report without delay.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this request.

Sincerely,
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